O 00 N O Ul B WN B

W W WWWRNNNNNNNNNNRRPRRRPEPEPRPPRPRPR PR R R
B WNPROOOMNOODUD WNRPOWVOOONOOODUDNWNIERO

SALISBURY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
Thursday August 19, 2025 — 6:30 PM
Remote Meeting by Live Internet Video Stream and Telephone

Members Present: Members Absent:

Dr. Michael Klemens (Chair)

Cathy Shyer (Vice Chair) Staff Present:

Martin Whalen (Secretary) Abby Conroy (Land Use Director)

Bob Riva (Regular Member) Miles Todaro (Land Use Technical

Allen Cockerline (Regular Member) - joined at 6:45 PM  Specialist)

Dr. Danella Schiffer (Alternate Member) Attorney Charles Andres (Town Counsel)

Beth Wells (Alternate Member)

Brief Items and Announcements

1. Call to Order / Establish Quorum
Chair Klemens called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. A quorum was established with four regular
members present (Chair Klemens, Vice Chair Shyer, Secretary Whalen, and Regular Member Riva).
Alternate Members Schiffer and Wells were also present.

Motion: To accept the agenda.
Made by Riva, seconded by Whalen
Vote: 4-0-0

Minutes of July 21, 2025 — pending
Minutes of August 4, 2025 — pending
Minutes of August 5, 2025 — pending
Minutes of August 12, 2025 — pending
Minutes of August 14, 2025 — pending

oA wWwN

Public Hearing — 6:30 PM
7. #2025-0287 / Wake Robin LLC & Ms. Serena Granbery (ARADEV LLC) / 104 & 106 Sharon Road
& 53 Wells Hill Road / Special Permit for Hotel, Redevelopment of the Wake Robin Inn (Section
213.5) / Map 47/ Lot 2 & 2-1 / DOR: 05/05/2025 / Hearing Opened 08/05/2025 / Continue Hearing,
Close By 09/09/2025
The public hearing continued at 6:32 PM. Chair Klemens began with a discussion of scheduling the
meetings. He drew attention to the email correspondence in the record between himself and the
Cruger’s attorney Perley Grimes. Chair Klemens explained that initially Attorney Grimes said he would
be submitting a petition for intervenor status. Attorney Grimes subsequently submitted a letter stating
they would not intervene, but would still be submitting expert testimony. Chair Klemens asked
Attorney Grimes if the experts were available to present at this meeting. Attorney Grimes said they
were not and he could not yet commit to a specific meeting date that they will be available, though he
believed he would have additional information by the end of the week. Bill Cruger, whom Attorney
Grimes was representing, explained they are not yet sure what, if anything, they will be submitting into
the written record. He added that if the Commission wishes to hear from any of the experts after
reading their submitted documents, he will do is best to make them available to join a meeting. Chair
Klemens clarified that he would like to make sure the Commission, Applicant, and public all get a
chance to review and respond to submitted documents, so prompt submission would be appreciated.



35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80

Mr. Cruger agreed, and assured Chair Klemens that they would not be submitting all of their
documents at the last minute. Regular Member Cockerline joined the meeting at 6:45pm and was
seated as a voting member. Regular Member Cockerline agreed with Chair Klemens, and added that he
appreciated receiving the input from the intervenor on the previously withdrawn ARADEV LLC
application.

LUTS Todaro listed the documents added to the record since the last public hearing. Steven Cohen,
representing ARADEV LLC, presented a slideshow presentation. He explained that his presentation will
focus on questions asked by the Commission, since answers to questions asked by the public have
been submitted in writing. Mr. Cohen began by explaining that replacing the existing motel building
with the four proposed cottages results in a reduction in total building footprint and number of guests
that could be accommodated. He also explained that the total building footprint on the Granbery
parcel would be increasing from 3,636sq ft to 3,958sq ft, but the number of bedrooms would be
decreasing from six to four. Chair Klemens asked what buildings comprise the 3,958sq ft total building
footprint. Mr. Cohen answered the garage to be used for storage is 958sq ft, and each cottage
footprint is 1,500 sq ft. Mr. Cohen continued his presentation, explaining that including the Granbery
parcel allows for a 100 foot wooded buffer from the Kalison property boundary to the nearest cottage.
He also noted that they have removed their plan for regular background music in the pool area. Mr.
Cohen also provided the CT Department of Transportation (CTDOT) data showing a decrease in traffic
since 2006 at the intersection of Sharon Road and Wells Hill Road. He clarified that the data was taken
from the State website, not provided independently by the Applicant. Mr. Cohen also explained that
the Granbery parcel was historically part of the Wake Robin Inn and the Special Permit process would
give the Commission more discretion regarding what can happen on that parcel. He also noted that if
the Granbery parcel were not included, the Wells Hill Road access to the Wake Robin Inn would remain
in use. Mr. Cohen also listed other possible uses of the Granbery parcel if it were to continue to be
separate from the Wake Robin Inn parcel. Mr. Cohen next explained how sound would be different if
they used the property to its maximum allowed in its current state as a legal pre-existing non-
conforming use, responding to a question asked by Chair Klemens at a previous meeting. He
explained that their acoustical consultant modeled the potential sound levels at property lines in this
hypothetical scenario, and concluded they would be significantly higher than the current proposal.

Mark Arigoni, Landscape Architect for SLR Consulting, explained that section 803.2 of the Zoning
Regulations expressly allows more intense uses of a site as long as they do not create a nuisance. He
noted that “nuisance” is a subjective term. The Applicant must provide as much relevant objective
criteria as they can to the Commission to aid their decision-making. For example, the Applicant
proposes that currently allowed outdoor tented events be moved inside a building. He explained that a
“Dark Skies” compliant photometric plan was submitted. He also noted that the Applicant has reduced
the hours of operation in response to comments received at prior meetings. In response to a
Commission question at a previous meeting, Mr. Arigoni showed charts summarizing what is allowed in
the Zoning Regulations compared to existing and proposed conditions.

In response to the summarizing charts, Chair Klemens questioned the Applicant’s position that the
Granbery property could be used for commercial tented events even if it were not merged with the
Wake Robin property. He also asked how the Applicant had calculated the numbers for the charts
showing the “maximum allowed per current Zoning Regulations.” Mr. Cohen answered that most of
the information was based on the maximum building coverage and the maximum building height of 35



81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126

feet. Mr. Cohen also clarified that these are the maximum possible with a Special Permit, not the
maximum that is currently allowed as a legal pre-existing nonconforming use.

LUD Conroy showed the submitted site plan to clarify where the two proposed cottages were on the
Granbery property. Mr. Arigoni also noted that the above-ground sewer line, seen on the existing
conditions, would be replaced with a new underground line. Vice Chair Shyer asked if the “maximum
allowed per current Zoning Regulations” information was based on including the Granbery parcel. Mr.
Cohen confirmed it was accounting for the lots being merged. Vice Chair Shyer also asked what are the
service gaps they feel the Applicant’s proposal addressed. She also commented that she does not see
the area as “a walkable location” as described in the application materials. Vice Chair Shyer asked
about pedestrian circulation within the site, inquiring how event guests crossing the driveway will be
managed when the restaurant is open and cars are entering and exiting.

Chair Klemens commented that he did not believe the maximum possible use of the property shown in
the charts would ever make it through the Special Permit process. Mr. Arigoni responded that the
intent of the chart was to show that the proposal is nowhere near the maximum of what could be
allowed. Regular Member Cockerline asked for clarification on how anticipated perception of decibels
works in regards to sound at the property lines. Alternate Member Schiffer asked if the hours of
operation for outdoor events listed are the same every day of the week. Mr. Arigoni confirmed that is
correct. Alternate Member Schiffer also asked if there will be a 24/7 enforcement officer on the
property. Attorney Mackey commented that Applicants can’t be responsible for enforcement
capabilities that the Town may or may not have. Mr. Cohen commented that large events will have
private security as a requirement, and there will be a 24/7 telephone number and email address to
contact if there are issues with the operations of the Inn. He added that hotel guests would also be
inconvenienced by noise nuisances, so the interests of the neighbors and the Inn are aligned. Attorney
Mackey added that the Applicant reserves the right to remove anyone from the property as needed.
Chair Klemens noted that enforcement could be a condition of the application if approved. Chair
Klemens opened the meeting to public comment.

Elyse Harney commented that a resort of this size will be detrimental to the quiet enjoyment of
residential properties in the neighborhood, and therefore will be a nuisance. As owner of Elyse Harney
Real Estate, she believed it would diminish property values. She also believed it would ultimately raise
taxes due to strain on Town infrastructure.

Aimee Bell questioned the validity of the CTDOT traffic data, as she believed traffic has at least doubled
in that time. Ms. Bell also asked how the number of guests staying in the cottages will be monitored.
She commented that party-goers staying on a nightly basis will not behave the same as nearby
residents. She also commented that 53 Wells Hill Road does not have six bedrooms.

Nicole Franchini commented that she believes that it is common sense an expansion of the Wake
Robin Inn will increase traffic, light pollution, noise, and use of Town sewer and water resources. She
also believed that large projects like this shouldn’t be approved when the Town doesn’t have the
infrastructure to enforce compliance.

Bill Cruger commented that in the thirty years he has lived on Wells Hill Road, he does not recall
extensive events occurring at the Wake Robin Inn. Mr. Cruger asked if more data on the numbers of



127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169

events held could be provided. He also asked for further clarification on the purpose of the “maximum
allowed per current Zoning Regulations” section of the charts shown earlier in the meeting.

Andy Plesser commented that he believes evaluating noise nuisance is about common sense. He
believed event-goers would be likely to stay up partying regardless of the closing time of the event hall,
and this would be a significant threat to the neighborhood.

Karen Lundeen asked if the ARADEV LLC planned to manage the redeveloped Inn to make sure
everything proposed would be implemented. Chair Klemens commented that if the Special Permit is
granted, it goes with the property regardless of the owner. Subsequent owners would still have to
follow the Special Permit conditions.

Darryl Peck questioned the information regarding possible uses of the Granbery property if
independent of the Inn, since the Applicants are now the owners of that property. He felt this
information was presented in a disingenuous manner.

Greg Wilmore agreed with Mr. Peck’s comments, and felt that information about the application was
being presented in a misleading manner.

Joe Costa asked the Commission to elaborate on what recourse they have if the Applicant does not
adhere to what was presented. He also asked the Commission to disregard the potential behavioral
remedies. Mr. Costa felt that the Commission should instead focus on the larger picture, such as what
this project will look like in the future under different ownership.

At 8:13pm, there was no one else from the public wishing to speak so the public comment section of
the meeting was closed. A motion was made to continue the hearing at 8:14pm.

Motion: To continue the public hearing to August 26, 2025 at 6:30pm via Zoom.
Made by Riva, seconded by Whalen
Vote: 5-0-0

Tabled Business
8. #2025-0295 / 235 Belgo Road, LLC / 235 Belgo Road / Vertical Expansion of a Nonconforming
Barn Proposed for Conversion to Single Family Residence (Section 503.2) / Map 9/ Lot 9/
DOR:07/21/2025 / Public Hearing Scheduled 08/18/2025 at 6:45 PM

Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 8:15pm.
Respectfully Submitted,

Miles Todaro
Land Use Technical Specialist



